Bush House

SM97940238                   OS 25”    XL.5             St Mary’s, Pembroke

(It was long assumed that Bush would be included in the Cadw Register. No survey was done until a brief visit was made on 9th February 2006)

C1960 a large comprehensive school was built on the western two thirds of the demesne. The house, having been used for boarders at the school has lately been a retirement home. A modern conservatory has been erected on the east front and new building (for domestic services) has been done to the north. The original (ie pre 1905) west end was blocked up and a length of ground and first floor remains. 
In 1837 Thomas Meyrick (c1774-1837) died without male heir.

His daughter Jane Sophia who was married to Sir John Chiverton-Charlton of Apley Castle in Shropshire inherited the estates. Their son Thomas Charlton took the Meyrick surname in 1858. He married in 1860 Mary Rhoda Hill who died in 1924.

Sir Thomas and his wife built a new mansion. Although it looked totally new with clean Regency lines it did incorporate the old 17c house and was said to be somewhat higgledy-piggledy inside. It was the work of Edward Haycock the Shropshire County Surveyor. The builders were Jones and John of Pembroke Dock. There is a photograph showing the house (from the east?) at the end of an avenue.

The mansion was burned down in 1868. The family moved into Bangeston Hall. 

After false starts with architects a new house was built in 1905 by G. Morgan and Sons of King Street, Carmarthen.

There was once an avenue (beech?) from about 800m eastwards from the mansion; It was crossed by the main Pembroke-Pembroke Dock road and it was recently still possible to see the lower wall  with iron railing which provided a more open view along it. The western end, from the road wall to near the house was evidently planted with trees which now form a dense wood.
The modern drive to school and mansion enters the site at the south east corner of this wood and proceeds westwards. After the mixed wood there is a group of mature lime and various other trees and then, at about 200/300m the drive turns right (north) to the turning circle in front of the house passing an area of mature evergreen oak trees.
The walled garden lay to the north east of the house, behind the coachhouse. It was about one acre square with a gentle slope down from the north and along the north side was the gardener’s house (now the caretaker’s) with a range of buildings to its west. The limestone walls are in poor shape and enveloped in ivy but they do form a secure wall for the caretaker’s garden in which various stretches of Lonicera nitida survive. There were buildings outside the west wall but these have been bulldozed away.

Whatever remained north of the walled garden has been flattened and has long been used as a plant centre and nursery with several large glasshouses. 
PRO D/ROC  1931 (?)  Sale notice.

See Meyricks of Bush by Michael McGarvie (son in law of Sir David?) (GH)

Obituary of Sir David Meyrick  Western Telgraph 3rd March 2004 (cutting)
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